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September 6, 2024 
 
To All Bidders: 
 
Subject:   Bid No. CR-8242-W5, Cleaning Services – Union Station / WRA-DPF 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 4 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
With reference to our bid request relative to the above subject, please refer to the 
changes/modifications/clarifications to the original proposal request. 
 

• PLEASE SEE ATTACHED WRA REIPP. ARTICLE I, SECTION (2) OF WHICH 
APPLIES TO THIS BID / CONTRACT. 
 

• PLEASE SEE BELOW QUESTIONS RECEIVED AND RESPONSES FROM WRA 
 

• In Bonding requirements section, bid guarantee, performance guarantee, and payment 
bond are listed. What are the amounts necessary for each, if required?  
Answer: There are no bonds or surety required. 

• Some cleaning companies have been paying staff as 1099 "subcontractors" to avoid tax 
expenses, lower comp insurance and avoid health care costs. The DOL has begun to 
prosecute companies for this practice. Does the WRA allow cleaning contractors to 
employ staff as contractors and pay them as 1099? 
Answer: No. WRA does not allow this.  

• Is subcontracting any services allowed on this contract? 
Answer: No, vendor awarded this contract is expected to perform the services required. 

• In the Davis Bacon guideline, it says that staffing needs to be paid weekly. Will staff 
need to be paid weekly?  
Answer: No, the Davis Bacon guidelines and prevailing wage rates do not apply to this 
service. Any reference to the Davis-Bacon or Service Contract Acts, including in any 
previous addenda are hereby deleted by this addendum.  

• Davis Bacon Guideline mentioned certified payroll but does the WRA require certified 
payroll sheets?  
Answer: No, but WRA may inspect or request copies of the vendor’s payroll associated 
with this contract with respect to the WRA’s Responsible Employer and Inclusionary 
Participation Policy, more specifically Article I, Section (2) referring to the City of 
Worcester’s Wage Theft Prevention Ordinance. 
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• Do all staff need to be e-verified? 
Answer: Yes. 

• Can a staff member use an ITIN number as a social security number?  
Answer: No.  

• Is this bid subject to the Wage Rates provided in Davis Bacon addendum for “Janitors 
1150” of $18.06 per hour and 23470 “Laborer 23470” for $19.73? Which rate is this 
contract subject to?  
Answer: No, please see response to fourth bullet noted above.  These rates are not 
required. 

o Is the non-public area subject to the above rate as well or something different?  
Answer:  No, see responses above.  

• According to the cleaning schedule provided there needs to be 2 janitors required per 
shift, 5 days per week for all public areas.  

o Starting at 4am and ending at 12am Monday/Tuesday/Wednesday 
o Starting at 4am and ending 2am Thursday/Friday  
o Starting at 6am and ending 2am Saturday/Sunday  
o Additionally, the cleaning schedule calls for 1 of the public space janitors to clean 

the non-public areas (Business Office Space) 5 days per week?  
Answer:  Confirmed, two janitors per shift. 

• Who is responsible for cleaning the new platform? Emptying trash, replacing liners, 
picking up any bottles/cans/trash on the platform, cleaning the glass at the top of the 
steps into the station?  
Answer: Vendor is not responsible for cleaning of the new platform. 

o If yes, how far down the new platform are we responsible for cleaning?  
Answer:  N/A 

o How about the new pedestrian bridge near the Shrewsbury street parking lot? 
Answer: Vendor is not responsible for cleaning of the new pedestrian bridge. 
 

• Can you break the hours per week out between public and non-public areas? 
Answer: Nine hours for non-public areas and remainder of time for public areas 
 

• Please provide the total weekly hours  for all three shifts . 
• Shift 1 = 
• Shift 2 = 
• Shift 3 =   

Answer: See answers  above  
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• When reviewing we have found what appears  to be an inconsis tency on the third 
shift.  
In the box on the left, it says  2 cleaners  per shift but the way it looks for third shift is  
that there are two 8-hour shifts  plus  one 4-hour shift.  Which would be three people 
on third shift.  I am requesting clarification is  it supposed to be 2 cleaners  per shift 
or 3? 

•  

 

 Answer: Two cleaners per shift 

• During the walk through there was a question about how to maintain terrazzo 
floors .  Please confirm as  s tated that the refinishing of the floors  is  handled by a 
separate contract. 
Answer: Confirmed, terrazzo floor maintenance handled by separate contract. 

• Is  there a cost for badging?    
Answer:  WRA does not require employee badges. If vendor requires  badges for its  
employees , it would be responsible for handling that. 

• What is  the average time it takes  to obtain a  security badge?   
Answer:  There are no security badges required at Union Station. Building it open to 
the public. 

• Does the incumbent provide any sorting for recycled material?   
Answer: No. 

• Is  there a cost for employee parking?    
Answer: There is  no dedicated employee parking on s ite. Employees  may park in 
eligible locations  including the Union Station garage at their own cost.  
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• How does the incumbent firm wash the laundry generated by the Janitorial services  
contract currently?    
Answer: There is  no laundry service. 

• Are there hookups for a  washer and dryer?    
Answer: No. 

• Please provide the las t 2 years  of his torical s lip and fall GL claim his tory for this  
contract.  
Answer:  Do not have this  data.  
 

Bidders are requested to acknowledge and/or include this addendum with submission. All other 
terms, conditions, and specifications remain unchanged. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Christopher J. Gagliastro 
Purchasing Director 
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Worcester Redevelopment Authority 
 

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER & INCLUSIONARY PARTICIPATION 
POLICY 

WHEREAS, the Worcester Redevelopment Authority was established as a public 
agency under chapter one hundred and twenty-one B of the General Laws to 
undertake projects to eliminate blighted, decadent, deteriorating and substandard 
areas within the city of Worcester; and 

WHEREAS, the Worcester Redevelopment Authority finds and determines that it may 
advance the public purposes for which it was established by including certain 
minimum standards in construction contracts it awards directly or are awarded by 
developers and other entities in relation to urban renewal projects initiated by the 
Worcester Redevelopment Authority; and  

WHEREAS, the Worcester Redevelopment Authority finds and determines that those 
minimum standards must include compliance with state laws governing the 
payment of prevailing wages, the provision of workers compensation coverage, and 
the proper classification of individuals as employees and not as independent 
contractors, as well as standards concerning health insurance coverage; and 

WHEREAS, the Worcester Redevelopment Authority hereby further finds and 
determines that it may further advance the public purposes which it serves by 
establishing inclusionary participation requirements involving minorities and 
women and businesses owned by minorities and women to support educational 
pools, mentoring programs, joint ventures and the like during the planning, 
construction and operational phase of urban renewal projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that it shall be the policy of the 
Worcester Redevelopment Authority that the following provisions shall apply as 
specified herein to the various contracts and agreements to which the Worcester 
Redevelopment Authority is a party:  

 

Article I – General Policy for All Contracts 

 Every contract governed by this policy, including every request for proposals, 
shall include the following requirements: 

 

(1) Every contractor, at every tier, shall commit to workforce diversity and shall 
use best efforts to utilize 25 percent Worcester resident work hours, 38 
percent people of color and indigenous people work hours and 10 percent 
women work hours and shall further commit to a goal of utilizing bona-fide 
women/minority-owned firms qualified by the State Supplier Diversity 
Office (SDO) or a local certifying agency by contracting with at least fifteen 
percent women-owned business enterprises (WBE) and ten percent 
minority-owned business enterprises (MBE) of the combined value of 



contracts and subcontracts made by the contractor on account of this 
contract.   
 

(2) All persons, contractors, and businesses supplying goods and/or services to 
the W.R.A. shall be required to comply with Chapter 2, Sections 37 (Fair CORI 
Practices), 38 (Gender Identity and Expression Policy), 39(Wage Theft 
Prevention) and 40(Human Trafficking Recognition & Elimination Policy) of the 
city of Worcester Revised Ordinances of 2008, as amended from time to time.  

  

Article II - Construction Contracts 

 1. The W.R.A. hereby finds and determines that its funds are most efficiently and 
productively spent by awarding construction contracts to firms that include and 
enforce provisions requiring compliance with state laws governing the payment of 
prevailing wages, the provision of workers compensation coverage, and the proper 
classification of individuals as employees and not as independent contractors, as well 
as state law concerning health insurance coverage.  The W.R.A. hereby further finds 
and determines that as a consumer of construction services it is appropriate for it to 
exercise entrepreneurial discretion by requiring firms that are awarded such contracts 
to comply with this policy because a failure to comply is injurious to the life, health 
and happiness of individuals employed by such firms and is deleterious to the quality 
of life in the City where most of such individuals reside. 

2. As a condition to the award of a contract, whenever the W.R.A. is procuring 
construction services subject to the provisions of G.L. chapter 149 and chapter 149A 
the following shall be incorporated into the procurement documents and made part of 
the specifications and contract. Every person, company or corporation shall 
acknowledge, in writing, receipt of said requirements with their bid or proposal. 

3. All bidders or proposers and all subcontractors and trade contractors, including 

subcontractors that are not subject to G.L. c.149, §44F, under the bidder for projects 
subject to G.L. c.149, §44A(2), and, proposers under G.L. c.149A, shall as a condition 
for bidding or subcontracting verify under oath and in writing at the time of bidding or 
submittal in response to an Invitation to Bid or in any event prior to entering into a 
subcontract at any tier, that they comply with the following conditions for bidding or 
subcontracting and, for the duration of the project, shall comply with the following 
obligations: 

a. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer must comply with the obligations established under G.L. 
c.149 to pay the appropriate lawful prevailing wage rates to their employees; 

b. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer must maintain appropriate industrial accident insurance 
coverage for all the employees on the project in accordance with G.L. c.152; 



c. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder must properly classify employees as employees rather than 
independent contractors and treat them accordingly for purposes of workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage, unemployment taxes, social security taxes 
and income tax withholding. (G.L. c.149, §148B on employee classification); 

d. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer must at the time of bidding certify that, at the time 
employees begin work at the worksite, all employees will have successfully 
completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United 
States Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least 10 hours 
in duration, and shall ensure that all employees working at the worksite 
possess such qualifications at all times throughout the duration of their work 
on the project and furnish documentation of successful completion of the 
course; 

e. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer must be in compliance with the health and 
hospitalization requirements of the Massachusetts Health Care Reform law 
established by Chapter 58 of the Acts of 2006, as amended, and regulations 
promulgated under that statute by the Commonwealth Health Insurance 
Connector Authority. 

f. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer must make arrangements to ensure that each employee 
of every contractor entering or leaving the project individually completes the 
appropriate entries in a daily sign-in/out log. The sign in/out log shall include: 
the location of the project; current date; printed employee name; signed 
employee name; and the time of each entry or exiting. The log shall contain a 
prominent notice that employees are entitled under state law to receive the 
prevailing wage rate for their work on the project. Such sign in/out logs shall be 
provided to the W.R.A. on a daily basis. 

g. The bidder or proposer and all trade contractors and subcontractors under 
the bidder or proposer, prior to bidding or, if not subject to bidding 
requirements, prior to performing any work on the project, shall sign under 
oath under oath and provide to the W.R.A. a certification that they are not 
debarred or otherwise prevented from bidding for or performing work on a 
public project in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or in the City. 

 

4. A proposal or bid submitted by any general bidder or by any trade contractor or 
subcontractor under the general bidder or proposer that does not comply with any of 
the foregoing conditions for bidding shall be rejected, and no subcontract for work 
outside the scope of G.L. c.149, §44F shall be awarded to a subcontractor that does 
not comply with the forgoing conditions. 



5. All bidders or proposers and all trade contractors and subcontractors under the 
bidder or proposer who are awarded or who otherwise obtain contracts on the projects 
subject to G.L. c.149, §44A(2) or c.149A, shall comply with each of the obligations set 
forth in this policy for the entire duration of their work on the project, and an officer of 
each bidder or subcontractor under the bidder shall certify under oath and in writing 
on a weekly basis that they are in compliance with such obligations. 

6. Any proposer, bidder, trade contractor or subcontractor under the bidder or 
proposer who fails to comply with any one of obligations set forth in this Article II for 
any period of time shall be, at the sole discretion of the W.R.A., subject to one or more 
of the following sanctions: (1) cessation of work on the project until compliance is 
obtained; (2) withholding of payment due under any contract or subcontract until 
compliance is obtained; (3) permanent removal from any further work on the project. 

7. In addition to the sanctions outlined in subsection (6) above, a proposer, general 
bidder or contractor shall be equally liable for the violations of its subcontractor with 
the exception of violations arising from work performed pursuant to subcontracts that 
are subject to G.L. c.149, §44F. Any contractor or subcontractor that has been 
determined by the City or by any court or agency to have violated any of the 
obligations set forth in this policy shall be barred from performing any work on any 
future W.R.A. projects for six months for a first violation, three years for a second 
violation and permanently for a third violation. 

8. A contractor or a subcontractor upon a showing that it is not, despite having made 
a bona fide attempt, feasible to comply with the requirements of this Article II, may be 
granted a waiver by the W.R.A.  The W.R.A. may delegate authority to grant such 
waivers to the city of Worcester contract compliance officer or any specifically named 
individual or individuals.  Any such delegate shall report all waivers granted to the 
W.R.A. for informational purposes on the agenda of the monthly meeting following 
such waiver. 

9. Violations of these requirements shall be considered by the W.R.A. in awarding any 
future contracts as a factor in determining whether any low bidder is a “responsible” 
bidder under G.L. c. 149, §44A(1), or G.L. c. 30, § 39M, or whether a firm, trade 
contractor or subcontractor is a “qualified” firm, trade contactor or subcontractor 
under G.L. c. 149A, §§ 5 and 8. 

 

Article III - Design, Engineering & Procurement Contracts  

1. The W.R.A. shall require every person or entity submitting a proposal to enter into 
a contract for design services, engineering services, or the procurement of goods, 
supplies or services in excess of $100,000, with the W.R.A. to submit with any such 
proposal an inclusionary participation plan containing the following elements: 

A. A report detailing the results achieved by the contractor over the prior two 
years to employ minorities and women, subcontract with businesses owned 
by minorities and women, to support educational pools, mentoring 
programs, joint venturing and other creative initiatives to increase the level 



of participation of minorities and women in employment and new business 
relationships. 

B. A plan detailing the efforts to be made by the proposer during the term of 
the proposed contract with the W.R.A. to employ minorities and women, 
subcontract with businesses owned by minorities and women, to support 
educational pools, mentoring programs, joint venturing and other creative 
initiatives to increase the level of participation of minorities and women in 
employment and new business relationships. 

2. Every design services, engineering services or procurement contract awarded by 
the W.R.A. shall contain the inclusionary participation plan submitted pursuant to 
section 1.B of this article as legally binding commitments of the designer, engineer or 
vendor enforceable with provisions allowing the W.R.A. to: 1) suspend work under the 
contract until compliance is obtained; (2) withhold payment due under the contract 
until compliance is obtained; or, (3) in egregious cases, terminate the contract. 

 

Article IV - Land Disposition Agreements with Developers 

1. Any land disposition agreement whereby the W.R.A. agrees to convey W.R.A. 
property as part of the implementation of an urban renewal plan, or otherwise in the 
furtherance of its public purposes, wherein the value of the property exceeds 
$1,000,000 shall include the following: 

A. A requirement that all the contractors and sub-contractors employed by the 
developer in relation to the project shall, where the amount of any such 
contract exceeds $100,000 or the amount of any subcontract exceeds 
$25,000, comply with the responsible employer provisions stated in Article II 
herein. 

B. A plan detailing the actions to be taken by the developer during the design, 
construction and operation of the proposed development to employ 
minorities and women, subcontract with businesses owned by minorities 
and women, to support educational pools, mentoring programs, joint 
venturing and other creative initiatives to increase the level of participation 
of minorities and women in employment and new business relationships. 

C. A requirement that the developer make a commitment that all contractors, 
subcontractors, designers, engineers and suppliers with contracts in excess 
of $100,000 with the developer shall use documented bona fide efforts to 
ensure that, to the maximum practical extent, that the minimum goals set 
forth in Article I(1) herein are met.  

D. A requirement that the developer make a commitment that all contractors, 
subcontractors, designers, engineers and suppliers with contracts in excess 
of $100,000 with the developer in relation to the project shall: 

(1) formally advertise notices of all employment opportunities in 
newspapers published in the city of Worcester and minority and 
Spanish language publications circulated in the city of Worcester; 

(2) give notice of such employment opportunities to the city of Worcester 
and state human resource agencies and active community groups 



and work closely with such agencies and groups to identify women, 
minorities and low-income persons for employment; 

(3) participate in existing local training programs and work with 
community-based training organizations, local school and 
educational agencies to develop new training programs to produce a 
pool of qualified women, minorities and low-income workers for all 
levels of employment; 

(4) support educational pools, mentoring programs, joint venturing and 
other creative initiatives to increase the level of participation of 
minorities and women in employment and new business 
relationships. 

E. A requirement that the developer make a commitment that it will:  

(1) provide reports documenting compliance with the foregoing 
requirements to the W.R.A. or any committee or individual it may 
designate for this purpose.  

 

Article V - Leases Involving W.R.A. Property 

1.  All leases involving property of the W.R.A. wherein the amount of the rental 
payments exceeds $100,000 annually shall include the following: 

A. A requirement that all the contractors and sub-contractors employed by the 
lessee in relation to the lease shall, where the amount of any such contract 
exceeds $100,000 or the amount of any subcontract exceeds $25,000, 
comply with the responsible employer provisions stated in Article II herein. 

B. A plan detailing the actions to be taken by the lessee during the design, 
construction and operation of the proposed leasehold improvements to 
employ minorities and women, subcontract with businesses owned by 
minorities and women, to support educational pools, mentoring programs, 
joint venturing and other creative initiatives to increase the level of 
participation of minorities and women in employment and new business 
relationships. 

C. A requirement that the lessee make a commitment that all contractors, 
subcontractors, designers, engineers and suppliers with contracts in excess 
of $100,000 with the lessee shall use documented bona fide efforts to ensure 
that, to the maximum practical extent, that the minimum goals set forth in 
Article I(1) herein are met.     

D. A requirement that the lessee make a commitment that all contractors, 
subcontractors, designers, engineers and suppliers with contracts in excess 
of $100,000 with the lessee in relation to the lease shall: 

(1) formally advertise notices of all employment opportunities in 
newspapers published in the city of Worcester and minority and 
Spanish language publications circulated in the city of Worcester; 

(2) give notice of such employment opportunities to the city of Worcester 
and state human resource agencies and active community groups 



and work closely with such agencies and groups to identify women, 
minorities and low-income persons for employment; 

(3) participate in existing local training programs and work with local 
school and educational agencies to develop new training programs to 
produce a pool of qualified women, minorities and low-income 
workers for all levels of employment; 

(4) support educational pools, mentoring programs, joint venturing and 
other creative initiatives to increase the level of participation of 
minorities and women in employment and new business 
relationships. 

E. A requirement that the lessee make a commitment that it will:  

(1) provide reports documenting compliance with the foregoing 
requirements to the W.R.A. or any committee or individual it may 
designate for this purpose.  

 

Article VI - Miscellaneous 

1.   This policy shall not apply to:    

A. Cooperation agreements or other contracts or leases entered into with the 
city of Worcester; 

B. Grant agreements or other contracts entered into with the commonwealth of 
Massachusetts or the United States of America; 

C. Loans, mortgages, bonds or other instruments financing W.R.A. operations, 
including depository agreements with banks or other financial institutions 
holding W.R.A. funds. 

2.   The W.R.A. reserves the right to waive this policy, in whole or in part, with respect 
to any particular contract, agreement, lease or transaction if it deems such a waiver in 
the best interests of the W.R.A. and the purposes for which it was established.    

3.   The W.R.A. reserves the right to impose additional requirements where any 
particular project is of sufficient size and scope to justify additional expectations and 
efforts. 
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